
To: Local 806 Trustee Joel LeFevre 

From: Members of the Independent Review Board 

Date: March 23, 2 000 

Re: Proposed Charge Against Former Local 806 
Secretary-Treasurer Donald Calagna 

I. RECOMMENDATION 

The Independent Review Board ("IRB") refers the below 

report to the Trustee of Local 8 06 for the purpose of filing 

charges against former Local 806 Secretary-Treasurer and current 

member Donald Calagna ("Calagna"). It appears that while the 

principal officer of Local 806, Calagna brought reproach upon the 

International Brotherhood of Teamsters ("IBT") by embezzling and 

unlawfully converting to his own use the funds of Local 806 and 

by breaching his fiduciary duties to the members, in violation of 

Article II, Section 2(a) and Article XIX, Sections 7(b)(1), (2) 

and (3) of the IBT Constitution. 

The IBT Constitution requires each IBT Local Union to 

adopt and operate under Bylaws approved by both its members and 

the International. It appears Local 806, which was chartered in 

1962, did not operate under approved Bylaws until 1998. In the 

absence of approved Bylaws and without the approval of the 

members, in 1995 and 1997 Calagna sought and the Executive Board 

voted Calagna salary increases. In 1995, 1996 and 1997 the 

Executive Board also voted Calagna Christmas bonuses. From 

January 1996 through December 1999, Calagna received 

approximately $69,434.15 from these unauthorized increases and 

bonuses. 



II. INTRODUCTION 

A. Background 

Local 806 represents approximately 700 members 

predominantly industrial employees in the New York metropolitan 

area. (Ex. 1). It has offices at 400 Garden City Plaza, Suite 

218, Garden City, New York 11530. 

On February 24, 2 000, the IRB forwarded a report to the 

IBT General President with respect to Local 806 (the "IRB 

Report"). The IRB Report recommended that a trusteeship be 

imposed. Among other things, the IRB Report reflected that Local 

806 had operated without approved Bylaws from its inception in 

1962 until 1998 and that in 1995 and 1997 Calagna had sought and 

received salary increases and in 1995 through 1997 Christmas 

bonuses totaling more than $69,000 without the approval of the 

members of Local 806. 

On March 3, 2 000, IBT General President James P. Hoffa 

placed Local 806 in trusteeship and appointed Joel LeFevre, 

Secretary-Treasurer of Local 84 0, as Trustee. (Ex. 2 ). LeFevre 

then removed Calagna from office. 

B. Donald Calagna 

Calagna joined the Teamsters in 1977 when he was 

employed by Waldbaum's. Anthony Calagna, Sr. ("Calagna Sr."), 

his father, who was the principal officer of Local 806 at the 

time, hired him as a business agent of Local 806 in 1979. 

Calagna became a trustee in 1979, and later served as Recording 

Secretary, Vice President and President of Local 806. Calagna 

had been the principal officer of Local 806 since 1992. (Ex. 
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at 4). Calagna further testified that while he has been a member 

of Local 806 he has not had a single contested Local officer 

election. (Ex. 4). In 1997, Calagna received an annual salary 

of $91,490.00. (Ex. 5). In 1998 and 1999, Calagna was the only 

salaried Local officer. (Ex. 1, 6). In 1995, 1996 and 1997 no 

other officer of Local 806 received a salary increase or a 

Christmas bonus. (Ex. 7). In 1999, Calagna received a gross 

salary of $1,682.76 per week. (Ex. 6). 

III. JURISDICTION 

Pursuant to Article XIX, Section 14(c)(1) of the IBT 

Constitution, this disciplinary matter is within the jurisdiction 

of the Local 806 Trustee. Paragraph G(e) of the March 14, 1989 

Consent Decree in United States v. International Bhd. of 

Teamsters. 88 Civ. 4486 (S.D.N.Y.) and Paragraph 1(6) of the 

court-approved Rules and Procedures for the Operation of the IRB 

(the "IRB Rules") require that within 90 days of the IRB's 

referral of a matter to an IBT entity, that IBT entity must file 

with the IRB written findings setting forth the specific action 

taken and the reasons for that action. Pursuant to Paragraph 

1(9) of the IRB Rules, not meeting this deadline may be 

considered a failure to cooperate with the IRB. 

IV. INVESTIGATIVE FINDINGS 

During Calagna's stewardship as principal officer of 

Local 806, the financial condition of the Local was precarious. 

The Local operated without approved Bylaws from its inception in 

1962 until 1998. The Local failed to hold Executive Board 
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Meetings and General Membership meetings as the IBT Constitution 

reguired. Financial controls were lax or nonexistent. 

A. Failure to Adopt and Operate Under Approved Bylaws 

Article XXII, Section 1 of the IBT Constitution 

reguires a Local to adopt its own Bylaws, which must comply, and 

may not conflict, with the International Constitution. Article 

VI, Section 4(a) further provides that Bylaws of a Local are 

effective upon the approval of the General President. (Ex. 8). 

Local 806 received its charter on May 4, 1962. (Ex. 9). 

On November 27, 1979, then IBT General President Frank E. 

Fitzsimmons instructed Anthony Calagna, Sr., then Secretary-

Treasurer of Local 806, that the Local "must take immediate steps 

to adopt its own separate Bylaws . . . . " (Ex. 10). The 

Executive Board failed to take any action. Eleven years later, 

on March 5, 1990, then IBT General President William J. McCarthy 

advised Calagna Sr. that "no Local Bylaws have ever been approved 

by the General President for Local Union 8 06, as reguired by 

Article VI, Section 4 of the International Constitution." (Ex. 

11). IBT records reflected that Local 806 failed to operate 

under approved Bylaws until February 1998. (Ex. 12).1 

On November 9, 1995, Calagna forwarded to then IBT 

General Secretary-Treasurer Tom Sever ("Sever") a copy of the 

proposed Local 806 Bylaws. (Ex. 14). Calagna stated the members 

1 At his 1999 sworn IRB examination, Calagna produced a copy of a booklet 
entitled "Constitution and Bylaws - Local 806 of the International Brotherhood of 
Teamsters." The booklet was undated. Calagna produced no documentation reflecting that 
these purported Bylaws had been submitted to or approved by the International. (Ex. 13). 
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approved the Bylaws by a mail ballot referendum. (Ex. 15).2 On 

November 22, 1995, Sever advised Calagna that he was forwarding 

the proposed Bylaws to then IBT General President Ron Carey 

("Carey") for review and approval. (Ex. 16). On February 18, 

1998, Sever advised Calagna that the review of the Local's Bylaws 

had been completed. With the exception of one provision 

concerning the designation of a specific month for nomination of 

officers, Sever advised Calagna the International approved the 

Local 806 Bylaws. (Ex. 17). 

Under Article VI, Section 4(a) of the IBT Constitution, 

a Local's Bylaws are effective only upon approval of the General 

President. (Ex. 8). Counsel submitted no documentary evidence 

of any prior requests of the Local for Bylaw approval other than 

that which resulted in the February 1998 approval. The 

International's Local 806 Bylaws file reflected no prior requests 

and contained only the February 1998 approval. (Ex. 12). 

B. Calagna's Salary and Bonus Increases 

On November 21, 1995, Calagna sought and the Local 806 

Executive Board granted a 25% annual salary increase of $18,000 

to Calagna. That increased his salary from $72,000 to $90,000, 

effective January 1996. (Ex. 18). From January 1996 through 

March 5, 1999, Calagna received approximately $55,874.25 from 

The Local produced documents which reflected that less than 100 members 
voted. The members approved the proposed Bylaws by a margin of 40 votes, 69 (for) to 29 
(against). (Ex. 14). 
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this salary increase. (Ex. 19) .3 

On December 16, 1997, the Local 806 Executive Board 

approved an additional 3% salary increase for Calagna as well as 

an increase in the contribution to his annuity. (Ex. 20). From 

January 1998 through October 1, 1999, Calagna received 

approximately $4,410.90 from this increase. (Ex. 21).4 In 

1995, 1996 and 1997, the Executive Board approved Christmas 

bonuses of $ 9,149.00 for Calagna as well as an increase to his 

pension contribution rate.5 In total, Calagna received more than 

$69,000 from these salary increases and bonuses, none of which 

were approved by the members when made. (Exs. 19, 21 and 22). 

Without approved Bylaws, Calagna and the Executive 

3 Calagna received this amount as follows: 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 

$17,971.25 
$18,298.00 
$16,664.25 
$ 3,940.75 

4 

Total $55,874.25 
Calagna received this salary increase as follows: 

1998: $2,499.51 
1999: $1,911.39 
Total $4,410.90 

5 Calagna received Christmas bonuses as follows: 
1995: 
1996 
1997: 

$2,614.00 
$3,267.00 
$3,268.00 

Total $9,149.00 
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Board had no authority to grant these salary increases and 

bonuses. Only the members had the authority to grant these 

salary increases and bonuses. See United States v. Stockton. 788 

F.2d 210, 217 (4th Cir.), cert, denied. 479 U.S. 840 (1986). 

On March 9, 1999, a Special Meeting of the members was 

held. At this meeting the twenty-eight members present, almost 

four years after Calagna received the salary increase, voted to 

ratify the 25% raise given Calagna in 1995 and the Christmas 

bonuses. The minutes do not reflect that the members approved 

the December 1997 3% salary increase to Calagna (Ex. 23). In 

any event, the members' retroactive approval of the salary 

increase and of the Christmas bonuses the Executive Board granted 

without authority does not cure Calagna's prior unauthorized 

takings of approximately $65,025.25, consisting of $55,874.25 in 

salary increases and $9,149.00 in Christmas bonuses. (Exs. 19 

and 22) .6 See Investigations Officer v. Liqurotis, Decision o f 

the Independent Administrator at 19-2 0 (October 27, 1992)(Ex. 

24), aff'd. United States v. IBT. 814 F. Supp. 1165(S.D.N.Y. 

1993); United States v. Silverman. 430 F.2d 106 (2d Cir. 1970), 

modified on other grounds. 439 F.2d 1198 (2d Cir.), cert denied. 

402 U.S. 953 (1971); United States v. Boyle, 482 F.2d 755 (D.C. 

Cir), cert, denied. 414 U.S. 1076(1973). 

Indeed, the failure to secure the members approval in 1999 

6 There appears to be no members approval for the 3 % salary increase the Local 
806 Executive Board granted Calagna in December 1997. Calagna received $4,410.90 as a 
result of this 3% salary increase. (Ex. 21). 
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for the 1997 increase after it was sought for the 1995 increase 

and the 1997 Christmas bonus demonstrated Calagna, at a minimum, 

knowingly embezzled those moneys. Moreover, the failure in 1999 

to disclose to the members what Calagna was actually receiving 

through bonuses and the other salary increase from the Local 

undercuts any claims of approval. See Investigations Officer v. 

Morris, Decision of the Independent Administrator at 13 (May 22, 

1991) (Ex. 25), aff'd. United States v. JBT, 777 F. Supp. 1123 

(S.D.N.Y. 1991), affjd, Docket Nos. 92-6056, 92-6058, 92-6088 

(2d Cir. September 15, 1992)["The fact that the raises ... were 

approved by the membership is insignificant in this case, where 

Respondents have engaged in a pattern of egregious non-disclosure 

to the membership"]. 

The IBT Constitution prohibits embezzlement or 

conversion of union funds. IBT Const., Art XIX, Section 7(b)(3). 

The Independent Administrator and the IRB have found the 

discussions of embezzlement under federal labor law instructive. 

Investigations Officer v. Vitale. Decision of the Independent 

Administrator (December 18, 1990) (Ex. 26), aff'd. United States 

v. IBT. 775 F. Supp. 90 (S.D.N.Y.), aff'd in relevant part, 948 

F.2d 1278 (2d Cir. 1991); Investigations Officer v. Morris (Ex. 

25); Investigations Officer v. Ligurotis (Ex. 24); 

Investigations Officer v. Burke, Decision of the Independent 

Administrator (October 1, 1992) (Ex. 27), aff'd. United States 

v. IBT, 817 F. Supp. 337 (S.D.N.Y. 1993); Investigations Officer 

v. Caldwell. Decision of the Independent Administrator (February 
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9, 1993)(Ex. 28), aff'd. United States v. IBT, 88 Civ. 4486 

(S.D.N.Y. September 2, 1993); and In Re Bruce Presley, Opinion 

and Decision of the Independent Review Board (June 8, 1998) (Ex. 

29) . 

Title 29, United States Code, Section 501(c) provides 

in pertinent part: 

Embezzlement of assets; penalty. Any 
person who embezzles, steals or unlawfully 
and wilfully abstracts or converts to his own 
use, or the use of another, any of the monies, 
funds, securities, property, or other assets 
of a labor organization of which he is an 
officer, or by which he is employed, directly 
or indirectly, shall be fined not more than 
$10,000 or imprisoned for not more than five 
years, or both. 

Courts interpreting this provision have stated that 
u[t]he language of section 501(c) imposes the 'broadest possible 

fiduciary duty upon union officers.'" United States v. Gibson, 

675 F.2d 825, 828 (6th Cir. 1982) quoting United States v. Bane. 

583 F.2d 832 (6th Cir. 1978), cert, denied. 439 U.S. 1127, 99 

S.Ct. 1044, 59 L.Ed.2d 88 (1979); United States v. Silverman. 430 

F.2d 106, 113 (2d Cir.), modified on other grounds. 439 F.2d 1198 

(2d Cir. 1970). The Sixth Circuit Court of Appeals stated that 

"[i]n enacting the statute, Congress created a new criminal 

penalty to prevent the following evil: 

Officers and other union representatives may not 
act adversely to their organization or to the 
members as a group or acquire a personal interest 
which is contrary to the interests of the 
organization. Being trustees the officers must 
subvert their own personal interests to the 
lawful mandates and orders of the organization." 
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675 F.2d at 828, citing United States v. Goad. 490 F.2d 1158, 

1162 (8th Cir.)/ cert, denied. 417 U.S. 945, 94 S.Ct. 3068, 41 

L.Ed.2d 665(1974), quoting Johnson v. Nelson. 325 F.2d 646, 650 

(8th Cir. 1963). 

Calagna's fiduciary obligations were also set forth in 

the New York Labor Law ("NY Labor Law")(Ex. 30). NY Labor Law 

Section 722(3) provides that "No officer or agent of a labor 

organization shall, directly or indirectly ... [a]ct in any way 

which subordinates the interests of such labor organization to 

his own pecuniary or personal interests." (Id. at 2). Pursuant 

to NY Labor Law Section 720, 

it is hereby declared to be the public 
policy of the state of New York that 
officers and agents of a labor organization 
shall be held to a fiduciary obligation 
in handling the labor organization's 
assets; ... and that such officers and 
agents shall account fully to the members 
of such labor organization for all assets 
and financial transactions. 

(Id. at 1). Furthermore, Article XIX, Section 7(b)(3) of the IBT 

Constitution forbids embezzlement or conversion of union funds. 

Contrary to the duties an officer owed under the NY 

Labor Law and the IBT Constitution, without any legitimate 

authorization, Calagna favored his financial interests over the 

interests of the Local's members when he caused Local 806 to 

grant him salary increases in 1995 and 1997 and Christmas bonuses 

in 1995, 1996 and 1997. 

In any event, Calagna and the board violated their 

fiduciary duties in granting the salary increase and bonuses 
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without membership approval in the absence of Bylaws. See 

United States v. Stockton. 788 F.2d 210, 217 (4th Cir.), cert, 

denied. 479 U.S. 840 (1986). Moreover, Calagna's violation of 

his fiduciary duties is additional evidence of his fraudulent 

intent to embezzle. See Investigations Officer v. Morris (Ex. 28 

at 23). As a fiduciary, Calagna had a duty to hold the Local's 

money and property solely for the benefit of the organization. 

See 29 U.S.C. Section 501(a). In the absence of approved Bylaws 

and members approval, Calagna breached his fiduciary duties to 

the Local's members by spending Local money for personal benefit. 

See United States v. Local 560. supra. 780 F.2d 267, 284 (union 

officers are fiduciaries); Morrisey v. Curran. 650 F.2d 1267, 

1274 (2d Cir. 1981) (union official breaches fiduciary duty when 

funds are spent for his benefit and such expenditures are 

manifestly unreasonable as a Local officer); Farrington v. 

Benjamin. 468 F. Supp. 343, 350-51 (E.D.Mich. 1979). 

Calagna did not have the required members approval at 

the time of the taking. Nor did he fully disclose to the members 

his compensation in 1999 in order for them to give informed 

approval. In the absence of approved Bylaws, only the members 

had the authority to approve salary increases. See United States 

v. Stockton. 788 F.2d 210, 217 (4th Cir.), cert, denied. 479 U.S. 

840 (1986). Moreover, the members' retroactive approval of the 

salary increase the Executive Board granted without authority 

does not cure the prior unauthorized takings. See Investigations 

Officer v. Ligurotis (Ex. 27 at 19-20); United States v. 
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Silverman. 430 F.2d 106 (2d Cir. 1970), modified on other 

grounds. 439 F .2d 1198 (2d Cir.), cert, denied. 402 U.S. 953 

(1971); United States v. Bovle. 482 F.2d 755 (D.C. Cir.), cert. 

denied. 414 U.S. 1076(1973). 

C. Failure to Hold Meetings As the 
IBT Constitution Required 

Consistent with its failure to comply with the 

requirements of the IBT Constitution with regard to the adoption 

of Bylaws and the need to obtain the approval of members, the 

Local did not hold Executive Board meetings or membership 

meetings as the IBT Constitution reguired. 

1. Failure to Hold Monthly Membership Meetings 

Article XIV, Section 2(a)(1) of the IBT Constitution 

reguires Locals to hold monthly membership meetings.7 It 

provides: 

General membership meetings shall be held 
monthly at such place and time as shall be 
designated by the Local Union Executive 
Board. . . . 

(Ex. 31). Under the version of the Bylaws the Local claimed to 

be following, the presence of fifteen members was reguired to 

constitute a guorum. 

From October 1994 through September 1999, the number of 

members in Local 806 was approximately 700 members. For this 

five-year period, the Local met the 15 member guorum reguirement 

The IBT Constitution allows membership meetings to be suspended during the 
summer months. There is no evidence that the members of Local 806 ever voted to suspend 
membership meetings during the summer months. 
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only four times: once in 1995, not at all in 1996 and 1997, once 

in 1998 and twice in 1999. From October 1994 through September 

1999, the Local had only four general membership meetings at 

which a quorum was met out of the required minimum of 4 8 

meetings. Moreover, if the Local did not include its officers in 

the count, it would have met a quorum at only three of those four 

meetings. (Ex. 32). 

Significantly, at three of these four meetings, the few 

members present acted upon matters beneficial to the Board 

members. Two membership meetings were officer nomination 

meetings, at which the members renominated current officeholders 

to the same positions to which the officeholders, being 

uncontested, were automatically elected. (Exs. 33 and 34). At 

another meeting, on March 9, 1999, the small number of members 

present allegedly retroactively approved a wage increase to 

Calagna which the Executive Board had granted in 1995 and 

Christmas bonuses which the Executive Board had granted in 19 9 5 

through 1997, and for which membership approval was required 

under law. (Ex. 23). 

2. Failure to Hold Executive Board Meetings 

The Local also failed to hold Executive Board meetings 

in compliance with the IBT Constitution. Article XXII, Section 

2(a) of the IBT Constitution, requires Locals to hold Executive 

Board meetings no less frequently than general membership 

meetings, which are required to be held monthly. (Ex. 35). Frcn 

October 1994 through September 1999, the Local held 34 Executive 
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Board meetings of the reguired minimum of 49 meetings. (Ex. 3 6). 

D. Counsel's Arguments 

On December 6, 1999, counsel for Local 806 and Calagna 

submitted a letter regarding the matters under investigation. 

(Ex. 37). The arguments of counsel pertinent to Calagna are 

summarized below. 

1. The Local 806 Bylaws 

Counsel for the Executive Board argued that the absence 

of an approval letter from the International did not mean that 

the Local operated without valid Bylaws from 1962 until 1998, 

when the International approved the Local's Bylaws. (Id.). This 

position is in conflict with the language of the IBT 

Constitution. Under Article VI, Section 4(a) the IBT 

Constitution, a Local's Bylaws are effective only upon approval 

of the General President. Counsel submitted no documentary 

evidence of any prior reguests of the Local for Bylaws approval 

other than that which resulted in the February 1998 approval. 

The International's Local 806 Bylaws file reflected no prior 

reguests and contained only the February 1998 approval. (Ex. 9). 

Moreover, there is no record of member approval before August 

1995. 

2. Calagna's Raises and Bonuses 

Counsel argued that the 2 5% salary increase the 

Executive Board granted Calagna in 1995 was justified because 

Calagna had not received a raise in nine years and that his 

duties were about to expand. As a result of the termination of 

14 



the only other business representative, Calagna became the sole 

representative responsible for approximately 700 members. This 

misses the point of Calagna's failure to get proper authority for 

the raises. 

Moreover, it ignores the recklessness of giving Calagna 

additional raises and bonuses in the state the Local was in. 

From 1987 through 1998, the Local needed payments from the Funds 

to meet its operating expenses. In 1995, the Executive Board 

granted the 25% salary increase to Calagna at a time when the 

Trustee Reports reflected the Local officers knew they were 

spending more money than they were taking in. At that time, the 

Board also knew the Local's Bylaws had not been approved. The 

members did not approve the increase at that time. The Board 

sought approval of the 25% salary increase to Calagna from the 

members more than three years later, and only when instructed to 

do so by an international auditor. Even then full disclosure of 

the increased financial benefits to Calagna was not made in March 

1999. The minutes did not disclose either the amounts of the 

Christmas bonuses Calagna received in 1995, 1996 and 1997 or that 

Calagna had received a 3% salary increase in 1997. Moreover, as 

noted above, this retroactive approval did not cure the prior 

unauthorized takings. 

V. PROPOSED CHARGES 

Based upon the foregoing, it is recommended that former 

Local 806 Secretary-Treasurer and current Local 806 member Donald 

Calagna be charged as follows: 
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While an officer of Local 806 you brought reproach upon 

the IBT in violation of Article II, Section 2(a) and Article XIX, 

Sections 7(b)(1), (2) and (3) of the IBT Constitution and by 

embezzling and unlawfully converting to your own use the funds of 

Local 806 and by breaching your fiduciary duties to the members, 

to wit: 

From on or about November 21, 1995 to the present, as 

the principal officer of Local 806, you sought and received 

salary increases and bonuses totaling more than $69,000 in the 

absence of approved Bylaws and without the approval of the 

members of Local 806. 
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Exhibit List To Proposed Charge Against Donald Calagna 

Exhibit No. Description 

Ex. 1 Form LM-2, Labor Organization Annual Report. 
Local Union 806, 1998 

Ex. 2 Trusteeship Announcement re Local 806 

Ex. 3 Transcript of sworn examination of Donald Calagna 
dated July 15, 1993 

Ex. 4 Transcript of sworn examination of Donald Calagna 
dated November 19, 1999 

Ex. 5 Form LM-2, Labor Organization Annual Report. 
Local Union 806, 1997 

Ex. 6 Local 806 Wage and Expense Record for Donald 
Calagna for January through September 1999 

Ex. 7 Form LM-2, Labor Organization Annual Report. 
Local Union 806, 1995 

Ex. 8 Article VI, Section 4(a) of the IBT Constitution 

Ex. 9 Charter, IBT Local Union 806 

Ex. 10 Letter dated November 27, 1979 from then IBT 
General President Frank E. Fitzsimmons to then 
Local 806 Secretary-Treasurer Anthony Calagna, Sr. 

Ex. 11 Letter dated March 5, 1990 from then IBT General 
President William J. McCarthy to then Local 8 06 
Secretary-Treasurer Anthony Calagna, Sr. 

Ex. 12 International Bylaws file for Local 806 

Ex. 13 Booklet entitled "Constitution and Bylaws - Local 
806 of the International Brotherhood of 
Teamsters" 

Ex. 14 Letter dated November 9, 1995 from Donald Calagna 
to IBT General Secretary-Treasurer Tom Sever 

Ex. 15 Secret Ballots Cast by Local 806 Members, August 
1995 

Ex. 16 Letter dated November 22, 1995 from IBT General 
Secretary-Treasurer Tom Sever to Donald Calagna 
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Letter dated February 18, 1998 from IBT General 
Secretary-Treasurer Tom Sever to Calagna 

Minutes of Local 806 Executive Board Meeting, 
November 21, 199 5 

Schedule of Calagna 25% salary increase, 1996 to 
1999 

Minutes of Local 806 Executive Board Meeting, 
December 16, 1997 

Schedule of Calagna 3% salary increase, 1998-99 

Schedule of Calagna Christmas Bonuses 1995-1997 

Minutes of Local 806 General Membership Special 
Meeting, March 9, 1999 

Investigations Officer v. Ligurotis, Decision of 
the Independent Administrator (October 27, 1992), 
aff'd. United States v. IBT, 814 F. Supp. 1165 
(S.D.N.Y. 1993) 

Investigations Officer v. Morris, Decision of the 
Independent Administrator (May 22, 1991), aff'd. 
United States v. IBT. 777 F. Supp. 1123 
(S.D.N.Y.1991), aff'd. Docket Nos. 92-6056, 92-
6058, 92-6088 (2d Cir. September 15, 1992) 

Investigations Officer v. Vitale. Decision of the 
Independent Administrator (December 18, 1990), 
aff'd. United States v. IBT. 775 F. Supp. 90 
(S.D.N.Y.), aff'd in relevant part. 948 F.2d 1278 
(2d Cir. 1991) 

Investigations Officer v. Burke. Decision of the 
Independent Administrator (October 1, 
1992).aff'd. United States v. IBT. 817 F. Supp. 
337 (S.D.N.Y. 1993) 

Investigations Officer v. Caldwell. Decision of 
the Independent Administrator (February 9, 1993), 
aff'd. United States v. IBT, 88 Civ. 4486 
(S.D.N.Y. September 2, 1993) 

In Re Bruce Presley. Opinion and Decision of the 
Independent Review Board (June 8, 1998) 

Excerpt from New York Labor Law §§ 720, 722 
(Consolidated Laws Services (1998) 

18 



Excerpt from Article XIV, Section 2(a)(1) of the 
IBT Constitution. 

Schedule of Local 806 General Membership Meetings 

Minutes of Local 806 General Membership Meeting, 
October 10, 1995 

Minutes of Local 806 General Membership Meeting, 
October 12, 1998 

Excerpt from Article XXII, Section 2(a) of the IBT 
Constitution 

Schedule of Local 8 06 Executive Board Meetings 

Letter dated December 6, 1999 to the Chief 
Investigator from counsel to Local 806 
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INDEPENDENT REVIEW BOARD 
444 North Capitol Street, NW, Suite 528 

Washington, DC 20001 Z t - D " 
(202) 434-8080 

Facsimile (202) 434-8084 
Corruption Hotline (800) CALL IRB 

Board Members: 
Grant Crandall, Esq. 

Crandall, Pyles, Haviland & Turner 
122 Capitol Street, Suite 300 

Charleston, WV 25301 
Frederick B. Lacey, Esq. 

LeBoeuf, Lamb, Greene & MacRae 
One Riverfront Plaza 

Newark, NJ 07102-5490 
William H. Webster, Esq. 

S eptember 26, 2000 Milbank, Tweed, Hadley & McCloy 
1825 Eye Street, NW, Suite 1100 

Washington, DC 20006 

James P. Hoffa, President 
International Brotherhood of Teamsters 
25 Louisiana Avenue, N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20001-2198 

Re: Decision on Charges Against Donald Calaana (Local 806) 

Dear Mr. Hoffa: 
The Independent Review Board has reviewed your decision of 

September 22, 2000, in the above-captioned matter, and finds the 
decision to be not inadequate. 

By: 

cc: Patrick J. Szymanski, Esq. 
Joel LeFevre, Trustee, Local 806 
Mr. Donald Calagna 

Chief Investigator: 
Charles M. Carberry, Esq. 
17 Battery Place, Suite 331 
New York, NY 10004 
Administrator: 
John J. Cronin, Jr. 

Very truly yours, 
Members of tl 
Independent^ Rei iew Board 

Johtt 1. Cronin, Jr. 
Adraij&strator 

Pursuant to the Consent Order of the United States District Court, S.D.N.Y. 
United States -v- International Brotherhood of Teamsters 88 CIV 4486 (DNE) 



OFFICE OF 
JAMES P. HOFFA 
GENERAL PRESIDENT 

I N T E R N A T I O N A L 

B R O T H E R H O O D O F T E A M S T E R S 
AFL-CIO 

September 22, 2000 

VIA FACSIMILE AND FIRST CLASS MAIL 
Mr. John Cronin 
Independent Review Board 
444 North Capitol Street, NW, Suite 528 
Washington, DC 20001 

Re: Charges Against Donald Calagna 
Dear Mr. Cronin: 

This letter is in response to the Independent Review Board's finding that the 
decision previously issued on charges recommended by the Board against Mr. 
Calagna is inadequate. Contrary to the suggestion made in your September 11 t h 

letter, the decision was not arbitrary, and I ask the Board carefully consider the 
following points. 

Initially, it is important to note that, on the separate charges brought by 
Trustee LeFevre, I decided that Mr. Calagna should be suspended for a period of 
three years for violating Article II, Section 2(b), of the IBT Constitution by 
improperly causing the Local 806 Funds to reimburse Local 806 for costs not 
properly chargeable to the Funds. The three-year suspension is critical background 
to decision on the charges recommended by the Board. The fact that I suspended 
Mr. Calagna for three years on this separate charge is not mentioned in your 
September 11 t h letter even though it was noted in the Board's most recent 
Quarterly Report to the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of New York 
and its report to Teamsters members published in the September 2000 issue of the 
TEAMSTER Magazine. (Copies of the relevant pages are enclosed.) 

Second, contrary to the statement in the September 11 letter, I did not find 
that "the record reflected valid Local 806 Executive Board approval of Calagna's 
salary increases and bonuses." My decision stated that, in approving the 
compensation increases, the Local 806 Executive Board had complied with the 
pertinent provisions of proposed Local Union Bylaws that had been approved by 
the Local Union's members and were, at the time, awaiting formal approval by the 
General President. The chronology, which is set out in the Board's 
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recommendation, is as follows: the Bylaws were approved by Local 806 members 
in a mail ballot referendum in Fall 1995; Calagna forwarded the proposed Bylaws 
to then General Secretary-Treasurer Tom Sever on November 9, 1995; the initial 
pay raise was granted by the Local Union Executive Board on November 21, 1995; 
the second increase was granted by the Board on December 16, 1997; the proposed 
Bylaws were approved by General Secretary-Treasurer Sever, acting as the 
General President, on February 18,1998. 

The September 11 t h letter is inaccurate in stating that approval by the 
General President was withheld "because Local 806 could not provide proof the 
Bylaws had ever been approved by the membership as required." The Board 
recognized that the Bylaws had indeed been approved by the membership in its 
recommendation (pages 4-5 & n.2) and the relevant documents demonstrating 
membership approval are included as exhibits to the recommendation (Exhibits 14-
15). The only question with the Bylaws submitted by Calagna in November 9, 
1995, that was raised by the International Union involved an entirely different 
matter (Exhibit 17). The failure of the International Union to act on the proposed 
Bylaws submitted in November 1995 cannot be attributed to any question 
concerning their approval by the Local Union membership and appears to be 
simply a symptom of the inattention to basic procedures and responsibilities 
demonstrated by the prior administration. 

Third, I explicitly recognized in my decision that the Bylaws had not been 
approved by the General President as required by Article XXII, Section 1, and 
Article VI, Section (4)(a), of the IBT Constitution, at the time the increases were 
granted. I stated, however, that the absence of such approval does not 
automatically transform actions taken in accord with otherwise properly adopted 
Bylaws into fraud and embezzlement. This is especially true where the salary 
increases are not extraordinary. Here, as the minutes of the November 21, 1995, 
Local 806 Executive Board meeting reflect, Calagna had gone nine years without 
any increase. According to the Local Union attorney, Calagna would have 
received a 35% increase based on the cost-of-living increases over that period. 
Calagna requested and was given a 25% increase. In addition, the record shows 
that the Executive Board was advised that the Local was on improved financial 
footing and that the Local could afford the increase. 
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Fourth, upon further review in light of the September 11 letter, I recognize 
that, despite the suspension issued based on the separate cost-sharing charges, a 
complete and independent determination should be issued with respect to the 
charges recommended by the Board. I have not changed my view that the mere 
absence of the approval required by Article XXII, Section 1, and Article VI, 
Section (4)(a) of the IBT Constitution does not automatically transform actions 
taken in accord with otherwise properly adopted Bylaws into fraud and 
embezzlement. Upon reconsideration, however, I have decided that, on the 
charges recommended by the Board, Calagna should be suspended from 
membership and barred from holding any office or employment with any 
Teamsters affiliate for a period of three (3) years, to be served concurrently with 
the three (3) year suspension issued on June 28, 2000. I reach this conclusion 
because, at the time he sought and received the increases, Calagna clearly knew 
that the Bylaws had not been approved, because of the considerable length of time 
during which the Bylaws remained unapproved, and because Calagna engaged in a 
scheme to obtain improper reimbursements from the Local 806 Funds which were 
essential to fund the increases in question. 

JPH/ndb 
cc: Members of the IBT General Executive Board 

Patrick J. Szymanski, General Counsel 
Donald Calagna 
Karen Konigsberg, Esquire 
Charles M. Carberry, Esquire 

Very truly yours, 

James P. Hoffa 
General Presiden 



I N T E R N A T I O N A L 

B R O T H E R H O O D O F T E A M S T E R S 
AFL-CIO 

OFFICE OF 
JAMES P. HOFFA 
GENERAL PRESIDENT 

June 28, 2000 

Mr. Donald Calagna 
71 Byron Road 
Merrick, New York 11566 

Re: Panel Report and Recommendations 
Dear Sir and Brother: 

You will find enclosed the report and recommendations of the Panel, 
which conducted the hearings on the charges filed against you. I have had 
the opportunity to review the Panel's findings and conclusions, and hereby 
adopt them as my own, with the following modifications. 

On the charge originating from the Trustee concerning your practices 
with respect to the cost sharing agreement, I concur with the Panel that you 
have breached your fiduciary duty to Local 806 and to the participants in the 
Funds. As a full-time employee of Local 806 and the Union Trustee of the 
Funds, your conduct is governed by 29 U.S.C.§ 1108(c)(2) which provides 
that: 

... no person so serving who already receives full-time pay 
from an employer or an association of employers, whose 
employees are participants in the plan, or from an employee 
organization whose members are participants in such plan shall 
receive compensation from such plan, except for reimbursement 
of expenses properly and actually incurred ... 

The record clearly demonstrates that the cost-sharing arrangement was 
utilized to substantially compensate the Local for the time you spent as the 
Union Trustee at Fund Trustee meetings. Such conduct is in violation of 
federal statute, and, as noted by the Panel, also in violation of Article II, 
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Section 2 (b) of the IBT Constitution, as amended at the 1996 IBT 
Convention. 

In addition you caused the Funds to substantially reimburse the Local 
for the time spent by you commuting from home to work. The time spent 
during such travel would be considered non-compensable under most any 
standards, let alone the standards required of a Union Trustee of the Local 
806 Funds. This constitutes reckless disregard of your fiduciary 
responsibilities both as an officer of the Local Union and as a Trustee to the 
Funds. This conduct constitutes a clear violation of Article II, Section 2(b) 
of the IBT Constitution. Based on these findings, I hereby amend the 
penalty recommended by the Panel as follows: 

Donald Calagna shall be suspended from membership for a 
period of three (3) years from the date of this decision. During 
this suspension, you shall be deprived of all rights associated 
with membership in the Teamsters Union. Furthermore, during 
the period of your suspension from membership, you shall not 
be eligible to serve in any capacity, including as an employee or 
consultant, by any affiliate of the International Union, or by the 
International Union. Nor shall you be entitled to represent 
yourself as an agent of any affiliated labor organization, even in 
a non-compensated position. In addition, you shall be barred 
from receiving compensation or money from Local 806 and any 
other IBT-affiliated entity and from having any contributions 
made on your behalf to any IBT-affiliated funds by Local 806 
or any other IBT-affiliated entity during the imposed 
suspension. 
Finally, I concur with the Panel's finding that your conduct with 

respect to the IRB's charge concerning the improper salary raises and 
bonuses does not rise to the level of "embezzlement." In prior decisions, the 
IRB and this office have held that embezzlement occurs "when a fiduciary 
improperly takes union assets with fraudulent intent." See, e.g.. In re: 
Keaton: In re: Carey and Hamilton, (citing, U.S. v. Nolan. 136 F.3d 265 (2d 
Cir.1998); see also. U.S. v. Stockton. 788 F2d. 210, 217 (4 t h Cir.), cert 
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denied, 479 U.S. 840 (1986) ("A defendant who exercises dominion over 
property in the good-faith belief that the property is his own, or that the 
appropriation is otherwise authorized, is not guilty of embezzlement.") 
Here, the evidence in the record does not reveal intent to defraud the 
membership. The record reflects that the salary gains and bonuses at issue 
were considered fully and approved by the Local 806 Executive Board and 
that the charged party believed that the Local 806 Executive Board had the 
authority to do so under the governing Bylaws. 

The evidence introduced at the hearing does demonstrate that Local 
806 failed to comply fully with the requirements of Article XXII, Section 1 
and Article VI, Section (4)(a) of the IBT Constitution. However, the IRB 
charge is not based on that violation of the IBT Constitution, but rather on 
"embezzling" and unlawfully converting union funds for your own use. 
Consistent with the Hearing Panel, I find that without showing of bad faith, 
the IRB charge cannot be sustained. 

The Panel's recommendation, as modified in this letter, is reissued as 
the decision of the General President. You are hereby advised of your right 
to appeal the decision on the charge related to the cost sharing arrangement 
pursuant to Article XIX, Section 11(a). 

JPH/ndb 
Enclosure 
cc: John J. Cronin Jr., Administrator, Independent Review Board 

Fraternally yours, 

lames P. Hoffa 
General President 



BEFORE A HEARING PANEL 
APPOINTED BY THE INTERNATIONAL UNION 

JOEL LEFEVRE 
Charging Member 
v. 

DONALD CALAGNA 
Charged Member 

I. Introduction 
This matter arises from the March 23, 2000, charge referred by the 

Independent Review Board ("IRB") to the Trustee of Local 806, IBT (Local 806), 
Joel LeFevre ("Trustee LeFevre" or the "charging party"), pursuant to Article XIX 
of the IBT Constitution, against former Local 806 Secretary Treasurer Donald 
Calagna. The IRB charge which was referred to Trustee LeFevre alleges as 
follows: 

While an officer of Local 806 you brought reproach upon the 
IBT in violation of Article II, Section 2(a) and Article XIX, Sections 
7(b)(1), (2), and (3) of the IBT Constitution and by embezzling and 
unlawfully converting to your own use the funds of Local 806 and by 
breaching your fiduciary duties to the members, to wit: 

From on or about November 21, 1995 to the present, as the 
principal officer of Local 806, you sought and received salary 
increases and bonuses totaling more than $69,000 in the absence of 
approved Bylaws and without the approval of the members of Local 
806. 
In addition, by letter dated April 28, 2000, Trustee LeFevre filed the 

following additional charge: 
While an officer of Local 806, you brought reproach on the IBT 

in violation of Article II, Section 2(a) and Section 2(b) and Article 
XIX, Section 7(b)(1), (2) and (3) of the IBT Constitution by engaging 



in a sham cost sharing arrangement between Local 806 and the Local 
806 Fringe Benefits Funds thereby breaching your fiduciary duties to 
the Local 806 membership, as well as to the participants and 
beneficiaries of the Local 806 Fringe Benefit Funds, to wit: 

Throughout a period of time, including but not limited to, the 
1997 calendar year, as principal officer of Local 806, you converted 
Fringe Benefit Funds' assets, in a manner contrary to applicable law, 
by conduct including the filing of false and misleading documents 
based on work allegedly performed for the Fringe Benefit Funds, 
when in fact, the work was Union related-work. The purpose of these 
activities was in furtherance of a scheme to fund Union-related 
activities, at a time when you, as principal officer of Local 806, had 
failed and refused to undertake appropriate financial and fiduciary 
actions necessary and required to sustain the Union as a viable legal 
and financial entity. Your conduct, when acting as a Fringe Benefit 
Fund's Trustee, constitutes a failure and refusal to serve the best 
interests of Local 806 Fringe Benefit Fund's participants and 
beneficiaries. 

II. The Panel Hearing 
The hearing on these charges was held on May 10, 2000, in Garden City, 

New York before an Article XIX Hearing Panel appointed by the IBT General 
President. The Hearing Panel consisted of Ernie Soehl, Nicholas Piccarello and 
Dave Lucas. Having reviewed and considered all of the evidence submitted by the 
parties, the Panel finds that the charging party has failed, as to the charge referred 
by the IRB, to sustain its burden of establishing by a preponderance of reliable 
evidence as required by Article XIX, Section 1(e) of the IBT Constitution, that the 
charged party brought reproach upon the IBT by embezzling and unlawfully 
converting to his own use the funds of Local 806 and by breaching his fiduciary 
duties to the members. As to the charge concerning the cost sharing arrangement 
brought by the Trustee, the Panel finds that the charging party has sustained its 
burden of establishing by a preponderance of reliable evidence as required by 
Article XIX, Section 1(e) of the IBT Constitution, that Calagna breached his 
fiduciary duties to the Local 806 membership, as well as to the participants and 
beneficiaries of the Local 806 Fringe Benefit Funds. 
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III. Panel Findings 
A. Salary Increases/Bonuses (The IRB Referral) 

The evidence presented by Trustee LeFevre did not differ in any material 
respect from the IRB's findings. In the opinion of this Panel, the facts are 
insufficient to support the charge referred by the IRB and adopted by the Trustee. 
It appears to us that the crux of the charge is that the charged party received the 
raises and bonuses at issue in accordance with Bylaws which were not yet formally 
approved by the IBT pursuant to Article XXII, Section 1 and Article VI, Section 
4(a) of the IBT Constitution. Thus, but for the lack of approval by the 
International, there would be no charge against Calagna. We find, however, that in 
light of the unique facts specific to this case, the actions of the charged party did 
not rise to the level of "bringing reproach upon the IBT." 

We simply do not believe that the facts support a charge of "embezzling" 
and "unlawfully converting the funds of Local 806." The backbone of these 
charges is that the Bylaws by which the raises and bonuses were approved by the 
Local 806 Executive Board were not yet approved by the IBT, and, thus, the Board 
lacked authority to provide the compensation to Calagna without membership 
approval. The evidence demonstrates, however, that the conduct at issue was 
consistent with the proposed Bylaws which, were both approved by the 
membership and submitted for approval to the IBT prior to the implementation of 
the bonuses and raises which form the basis of this charge. Not only was the 
pertinent provision of these Bylaws eventually approved by the IBT, the record 
reveals that it was Calagna's efforts which prompted the IBT to eventually take 
final action on the proposed Bylaws in February 1998. Other than awaiting final 
approval from the IBT, which was not forthcoming for more than two years, every 
action that was required of Local 806 to bring its Bylaws into compliance was 
accomplished. 

Section 14(a)(2) of the Local 806 Bylaws provides the Executive Board with 
the authority to: 

Establish the salaries for the officers and Business 
Agents and establish the allowances, direct and indirect 
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disbursements, expenses and reimbursement of expenses for 
officers and Business Agents. Changes in the salaries, 
allowances or expenses of the officers and Business Agents 
shall be specifically set forth in the minutes of the Executive 
Board meeting at which such changes are approved. The 
minutes shall also reflect whether any officer who also serves as 
a Business Agent receives a salary, allowance or expense in his 
officer capacity or in his Business Agent capacity. The Local 
Union Executive Board may establish a dues checkoff 
procedure for Local Union officers and employees belonging to 
this Local Union. 

There is evidence that the Local 806 Executive Board was complying with 
that provision when it granted Calagna the raises and bonuses at issue. In addition, 
the IBT raised no issue with this provision upon approval of the Bylaws in 1998. 
We also note that the conduct of the Local 806 Executive Board at issue was 
consistent with the previous version Local 806 Constitution and Bylaws. 

A more difficult issue is whether the evidence presented on this charge 
reveals a breach of Calagna's fiduciary duty. To this Panel, it appears that Local 
806 was, and still is, a financially troubled Local. As borne out by the evidence 
presented by the Trustee in connection with the cost sharing charges, much of the 
Local's operating expense was provided through the cost sharing agreement with 
the Funds. As the minutes of the November 21, 1995 Executive Board meeting 
reflect, however, Calagna had not had a cost of living raise for nine (9) years. 
According to the Local's attorney, if Calagna were provided a cost of living 
increase based on his previous raise, he would have been entitled to a 35% 
increase; he requested and was granted a 25% increase by the Executive Board. In 
addition, the record shows that the Executive Board considered various other 
factors in support of the increase, all which would be deemed reasonable under 
ordinary circumstances. Here the circumstances were not ordinary, as the Local 
was operating in the red as a result of prior adverse judgments resulting from 
improper financial management. However, the Local's attorney advised the 
Executive Board that the Local was on improved financial footing and that the 
Local could afford the raise. It does not appear to us that the increases and bonuses 
provided to Calagna were extraordinary or that they would have been a 
controversial issue for the membership. In light of this, we cannot find that the 
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receipt of the approved raises and bonuses raises to the level of a "breach" of 
fiduciary duty on the part of Calagna. 
B. Cost Sharing Arrangement (The Trustee's Charge) 

The Panel finds that the charging party has sustained his burden of Calagna 
breached his fiduciary duties to the Local 806 membership, as well as to the 
participants and beneficiaries of the Local 806 Fringe Benefit Funds. In 1994, 
Local 806 entered into a cost sharing agreement between the Local and the 
Pension, Health & Welfare, Annuity and Legal Funds (hereafter "the Funds"). In 
1995, the Department of Labor sued Calagna and the Local alleging that he and 
other Trustees permitted excessive amounts of Fund assets to be transferred to 
Local 806 to compensate the Local for services rendered by Local 806 employees 
and for automobile related expenses. On October 12, 1995, the court entered into a 
consent judgment wherein the defendants agreed that Local 806 would pay the 
Local 806 Health and Welfare Fund $145,000 plus interest. On September 23, 
1997, a modified cost-sharing agreement was executed between Local 806 and the 
Funds, wherein union personnel and automotive and related expenses were made 
part of the cost sharing agreement. The cost sharing agreement was made effective 
February 1, 1995. During the time period prior to this modified agreement, but 
subsequent to the DOL investigation, Local 806 had ceased receiving 
reimbursement from the Funds for personnel and automotive expenses. 

The financial records for 1997, as analyzed by the financial auditor retained 
by the Trustee, show that out of the Local's total receipts of the year of $370,741, 
$109,102 was provided to the Local as reimbursement from the Funds for fund-
related activity. The method used by Calagna to invoice the Funds for the time 
spent of Fund matters was calculated on a sampling basis. The sampling consisted 
of two weeks, in the first quarter of the year, and one week in the third quarter. 
The percentage of time spent in these weeks on Fund business was then applied to 
Calagna's salary, benefits and expenses for the quarter. The data used for the third 
quarter was used again for the fourth quarter of 1997. Each hour attributed to 
Calagna for Fund activity, including the travel time, was billed at the rate of $43.70 
per hour. 

The samplings were based on time sheets completed by the charged party. 
The time sheets reflect a substantial amount of Fund activity attributed to the 
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charged party's attendance at Fund Trustee meetings. Based on the submitted time 
sheets, and the application of the sampling, the Funds were effectively billed 
$11,224 for time related to Calagna's participation in Trustee meetings. In 
addition, the first line item entered each day on every time sheet was coded as 
"travel." In many instances, 45 minutes or 30 minutes was designated. The 
charged party does not dispute that the time sheets reflect time spent commuting 
from home to his work destination. The time sheets were reviewed each of the 
first three quarters of 1997 by the Fund Attorney, the Fund Accountant, the Fund 
Administrator and the Employer Trustee. There is no evidence that any of these 
individuals raised issue with the method of completion or the data reflected on the 
time sheets. 

Article II, Section 2(b), of the IBT Constitution, as amended, provides in 
pertinent part: 

Any member who serves as a fiduciary of an employee benefit 
plan covering members of employees of the International or any 
of its subordinate bodies shall pledge to follow the following 
Code of Ethics with respect to his or her service as a fiduciary 
to the plan: 
(1) The fiduciary shall faithfully serve the best interests of 

the participants and beneficiaries of the plan in 
accordance with the requirements of applicable law. 

(2) The fiduciary shall exercise his or her duties with respect 
to the plan with the care, skill, prudence and diligence 
under the circumstances that a prudent person familiar 
with such matters would use acting under similar 
circumstances. 

(3) Neither the fiduciary nor any member of the fiduciary's 
family shall profit personally from his or her position in 
the plan, other than through benefits payable under the 
generally applicable rules of the plan or reasonable 
compensation payable by the plan for services rendered 
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the plan, which services are necessary for the 
establishment or operation of the plan. 

(4) A full-time paid officer or employee of the Local Union 
who is a fiduciary of an employee benefit plan shall not 
receive compensation from the plan if he or she receives 
full-time pay from the Local Union; provided, however, 
that nothing herein shall prevent the Local Union from 
receiving reimbursement of the fiduciary's employment-
related expenses from the plan for services rendered to 
the plan by the fiduciary who is paid by the Local Union. 

* * * 

(7) The fiduciary shall not cause the plan to incur 
unreasonable administrative or other expenses not 
necessary for the establishment or operation of the plan, 
in accordance with established law. 

The Panel finds that the evidence supports the charge that Calagna violated 
the Union Fiduciary Code of Ethics and thus, breached his fiduciary duties. The 
record reveals a financially troubled Local 806 could not afford to pay the salaries 
of its officers and pay off the DOL judgment, but for substantial reimbursement 
from the Funds. As a result, Calagna caused to the Funds to be charged for certain 
time and expense that a fiduciary should ensure is not charged to the Funds. 
Calagna was a full-time employee of Local 806. As part of his duties as the 
Principle Officer, he served as the Union Trustee of the funds. Time spent by 
Calagna in his capacity as Trustee for the Funds must be paid for by the Local, not 
the fund. In addition, we find Calagna violated Article II, Section 2(b) of the IBT 
Constitution by seeking reimbursement for the Union of his travel expenses related 
to commuting to and from his home to the office, and vice-versa. 

The charged party has testified that all of the conduct which forms the basis 
of the Trustee's charge was done under the guidance of trained professionals such 
as attorneys and accountants. Indeed, the evidence shows that these professionals, 
at a minimum had, or should have had, knowledge of the improper conduct. 
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Moreover, there is no evidence submitted that Calagna attempted to conceal any of 
the relevant facts from these professionals or this Panel. 

While we acknowledge the significance of the charged party's reliance on 
the professional's hired to assist in the implementation of the cost-sharing 
agreement, we do not believe that such reliance completely absolves the charged 
party for the breach of his fiduciary duty to the participants of the Funds. As a 
long-time officer of the Union, Calagna should have known that his fiduciary duty 
to the Funds prevented him from causing the Funds to reimburse the Local for his 
attendance at Trustee Meetings while serving in his capacity as the Union Trustee. 
Similarly, any prudent individual, Union officer or otherwise, should recognize 
that the Funds should not be made to provide reimbursement to the Local for time 
spent by a Union employee to commute from home to place of business. 

RECOMMENDED PENALTY 
As a result of aforesaid violation and conduct, the Panel recommends that 

Donald Calagna be suspended from membership for a period of one (1) year from 
the date of this decision. During this suspension, he shall be deprived of all rights 
associated with membership in the Teamsters Union, Furthermore, during the 
period of his suspension from membership, Calagna shall not be eligible to serve in 
any capacity, including as an employee or consultant, by any affiliate of the 
International Union, or by the International Union. Nor shall he be entitled to 
represent himself as an agent of any affiliated labor organization, even in a non-
compensated position. In addition, he shall be barred from receiving compensation 
or money from Local 806 and any other IBT-affiliated entity and from having any 
contributions made on his behalf to any IBT-affiliated funds by Local 806 or any 
other IBT-affiliated entity during the imposed suspension. 
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I N T E R N A T I O N A L 
B R O T H E R H O O D O F T E A M S T E R S 

AFL-CIO 

OFFICE OF 
C. THOMAS KEEGEL 

GENERAL SECRETARY-TREASURER 

November 28, 2001 

Mr. Donald Calagna 
71 Byron Road 
Merrick, New York 11566 
Dear Sir and Brother: 

This will advise that the General Executive Board, at its meeting held 
November 16, 2001, decided your appeal. The decision was based upon the 
written submissions of the concerned parties, and a complete review of the 
record. For your information, the General Executive Board's decision is 
enclosed. 

Enclosure 
cc: Teamsters Joint Council 16 

25 LOUISIANA A V E N U E , N.W. • W A S H I N G T O N , D.C. 20001-2198 • (202) 624-6800 

Fraternally yours, 

C. Thomas Keegel 
General Secretary-Treasurer 

CTK/dch 



Appeal of Donald Calagna, Former Principal Officer of Local Union 806, From 
the Decision of General President Hoffa 

Introduction 

Donald Calagna, former principal officer of Local Union 806, appeals from 
the decision of General President Hoffa suspending him from membership, Union 
office, and employment with an IBT entity for a period of three (3) years. Brother 
Calagna filed a timely appeal to the General Executive Board from the General 
President's decision, pursuant to Article XIX, Section 11(a) of the International 
Constitution. 

Procedural Background 

This matter arises from the April 28, 2000, charge filed by former Local 
Union 806 Trustee Joel LeFevre against Donald Calagna. That charge alleges as 
follows: 

While an officer of Local 806, you brought reproach on the IBT 
in violation of Article II, Section 2(a) and Section 2(b) and Article 
XIX, Section 7(b)(1), (2), and (3) of the International Constitution by 
engaging in a sham cost sharing arrangement between Local Union 806 
and the Local Union 806 Fringe Benefits Funds thereby breaching your 
fiduciary duties to the Local Union 806 membership, as well as to the 
participants and beneficiaries of the Local Union 806 Fringe Benefit 
Funds, to adl: 

Throughout a period of time, including but not limited to, the 
1997 calendar year, as principal officer of Local Union 806, you 
converted Fringe Benefit Funds' assets, in a manner contrary to 
applicable law, by conduct including the filing of false and misleading 
documents based on work allegedly performed for the Fringe Benefit 
Funds, when in fact, the work was Union-related work. The purpose of 
these activities was in furtherance of a scheme to fund Union-related 
activities, at a time when you, as principal officer of Local Union 806, 
had failed and refused to undertake appropriate financial and fiduciary 
actions necessary and required to sustain the Union as a viable legal 
and financial entity. Your conduct, when acting as a Fringe Benefit 
Fund's Trustee, constitutes a failure and refusal to serve the best 



interests of Local 806 Fringe Benefit Funds' participants and 
beneficiaries. 
The hearing on this charge was held on May 10, 2000, in Garden City, New 

York before an Article XIX Hearing Panel appointed by General President Hoffa. 
A full stenographic record was made of the hearing. Both the charging and 
charged parties were allowed to call witnesses, introduce documentary evidence, 
cross-examine opposing witnesses, and make opening and closing statements. 

The Panel determined that Donald Calagna breached his fiduciary duties to 
the Local Union 806 membership, as well as to the participants and beneficiaries 
of the Local Union 806 Fringe Benefit Funds in violation of the Union Fiduciary 
Code of Ethics, Article II, Section 2(b) of the International Constitution. The 
Panel found that that the evidence presented revealed that a financially troubled 
Local Union 806 could not afford to pay the salaries of its officers and pay off a 
Department of Labor (DOL) judgment, but for substantial reimbursement from the 
Funds, and that Donald Calagna caused the Funds to be charged for certain time 
and expense that a fiduciary should ensure is not charged to the Funds. 
Specifically, the Panel noted that Calagna as a full-time employee of Local Union 
806, should not have sought reimbursement for the Local for time spent by him in 
his capacity as Trustee for the Funds. In addition, the Panel determined that 
Donald Calagna violated Article II, Section 2(b) of the International Constitution 
by seeking reimbursement for the Union of his travel expenses related to 
commuting to work. 

In its report to the General President, the Panel recommended the following 
penalty: 

That Donald Calagna be suspended from membership for a 
period of one (1) year from the date of this decision. During 
this suspension, he shall be deprived of all rights associated 
with membership in the Teamsters Union. Furthermore, 
during the period of his suspension from membership, 
Calagna shall not be eligible to serve in any capacity, 
including as an employee or consultant, by any affiliate of the 
International Union, or by the International Union. Nor shall 
he be entitled to represent himself as an agent of any affiliated 
labor organization, even in a non-compensated position. In 
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addition, he shall be barred from receiving compensation or 
money from Local Union 806 and any other IBT-affiliated 
entity and from having any contributions made on his behalf 
to any IBT-affiliated funds by Local Union 806 or any other 
IBT-affiliated entity during the imposed suspension. 
The General President's Derision That Ts Appealed From 

By decision dated June 28, 2000, the General President concurred with the 
Panel's findings, but amended the penalty recommended by the Panel as follows: 

Donald Calagna shall be suspended from membership for a 
period of three (3) years from the date of this decision. 
During this suspension, you shall be deprived of all rights 
associated with membership in the Teamsters Union. 
Furthermore, during the period of your suspension from 
membership, you shall not be eligible to serve in any capacity, 
including as an employee or consultant, by any affiliate of the 
International Union, or by the International Union. Nor shall 
you be entitled to represent yourself as an agent of any 
affiliated labor organization, even in a non-compensated 
position. In addition, you shall be barred from receiving 
compensation or money from Local Union 806 and any other 
IBT-affiliated entity and from having any contributions made 
on your behalf to any IBT-affiliated funds by Local Union 
806 or any other IBT-affiliated entity during the imposed 
suspension. 

Appeal Analysis 

Upon review of all the evidence introduced at the hearing, Brother 
Calagna's post-appeal submission to the General Executive Board, and the entire 
record, it is recommended that the General Executive Board find that the General 
President was correct in determining that Brother Calagna violated Article II, 
Section 2(b), of the International Constitution. Article II, Section 2(b), states in 
pertinent part: 

Any member who serves as a fiduciary of an employee 
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benefit plan covering members of employees of the 
International or any of its subordinate bodies shall pledge 
to follow the following Code of Ethics with respect to his 
or her service as a fiduciary to the plan: 
(1) The fiduciary shall faithfully serve the best interests 

of the participants and beneficiaries of the plan in 
accordance with the requirements of applicable law. 

(2) The fiduciary shall exercise his or her duties with 
respect to the plan with the care, skill, prudence and 
diligence under the circumstances that a prudent 
person familiar with such matters would use acting 
under similar circumstances. 

(3) Neither the fiduciary nor any member of the 
fiduciary's family shall profit personally from his or 
her position in the plan, other than through benefits 
payable under the generally applicable rules of the 
plan or reasonable compensation payable by the plan 
for services rendered the plan, which services are 
necessary for the establishment or operation of the 
plan. 

(4) A full-time paid officer or employee of the Local 
Union who is a fiduciary of an employee benefit plan 
shall not receive compensation from the plan if he or 
she receives full-time pay from the Local Union; 
provided, however, that nothing herein shall prevent 
the Local Union from receiving reimbursement of the 
fiduciary's employment-related expenses from the 
plan for services rendered to the plan by the fiduciary 
who is paid by the Local Union. 

* * * 

(7) The fiduciary shall not cause the plan to incur 
unreasonable administrative or other expenses not 
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necessary for the establishment or operation of the 
plan, in accordance with established law. 

The following history of the Local Union 806 cost-sharing practices 
is instructive. In approximately 1994, the DOL began an investigation of the 
cost-sharing arrangement between the Local and the Funds. On October 12, 
1995, the Court entered a Consent Judgment wherein Local Union 806 
officers agreed that Local Union 806 would pay the Local Union 806 Health 
and Welfare Funds $145,000 plus interest. Also on October 12, 1995, a 
DOL Complaint was filed against Calagna and the Local alleging that since 
1987 he "caused or permitted" excessive amounts of the Funds' assets to be 
transferred to Local Union 806 to compensate the Local for services 
rendered by Local Union 806 employees and for attendant automobile 
expenses. 

The LM-2s filed by Local Union 806 reflect that the Local received the 
following cost-sharing amounts from the Funds from 1987 to 1997: 

The cost-sharing agreement involved in this proceeding was ratified 
on September 27, 1997, but was made effective February 1, 1995. For the 
year 1997, the Funds reimbursed to Local Union 806 approximately forty-
five (45%) percent of Brother Calagna's annual salary and benefits. 

Upon review of the record in this matter, it is determined that Brother 
Calagna violated Article II, Section 2(b), by causing Local Union 806 to 
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1987 
1988 
1989 
1990 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 

135,000 
135,000 
135,000 
135,000 
135,000 
135,000 
135,000 
22,500 
37,647 
54,357 

109,102 



obtain inflated reimbursements from the Local Union 806 Funds, for 
services performed during 1997, in order to enable the financially troubled 
Local to afford the salaries and benefits of its officers, including Brother 
Calagna, and to pay off the substantial Consent Judgment stemming from 
prior cost-sharing practices. 

Although not expressly noted in the General President's decision, it 
is significant that the sampling system utilized to perform the cost-sharing 
allocation inflated the representative amount of time actually spent by 
Brother Calagna at Fund Trustee meetings. Reimbursement from the Funds 
to the Local was done quarterly in 1997, on a sampling basis. The sampling 
was based on timesheets filled out by Brother Calagna. In 1997, timesheets 
were filled out for five (5) weeks—two (2) weeks in the first quarter, two 
(2) weeks in the second quarter and one (1) week in the third quarter. The 
allocation for the fourth quarter was based on the same one (1) week used to 
perform the allocation for the third quarter. 

Local Union 806 Fund Trustee meetings were held quarterly in 1997. 
Of the five (5) weeks chosen as representative workweeks for the purpose of 
the cost-sharing allocation, three (3) involve attendance at the quarterly 
Trustee meetings. Moreover, because the same one (1) week—during 
which a Trustee meeting was held—was used to perform the allocation for 
the third and fourth quarters of 1997, the allocation for those quarters 
presumes that a quarterly Trustee meeting is held every week. Brother 
Calagna addresses this issue in his post-appeal submissions, stating the 
reason Trustee meeting weeks were chosen for the sampling is that his 
knowledge of the upcoming Trustee meetings reminded him to complete the 
time sheets. This explanation is unpersuasive. 

Finally, events that have transpired since the issuance of the decision 
appealed from here, have rendered the matter moot. By letter dated 
September 22, 2000, the General President suspended Donald Calagna from 
membership and union office for a period of three (3) years in connection 
with a separate charge referred to the IBT by the Independent Review Board 
concerning unauthorized salary increases and bonuses. On September 26, 
2000, the IRB found the decision not inadequate. Under the rules of the 
Consent Decree, the IBT does not retain further jurisdiction, appellate or 
otherwise, over that matter, and thus, the General Executive Board lacks 
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authority to rescind Donald Calagna's three (3) year suspension. The 
suspension that is the subject of the instant appeal runs concurrently with 
the suspension found not inadequate by the IRB. 

Derision 

Accordingly, the appeal is dismissed as moot. 

Dated: November 16, 2001 
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